1981

John P. Dority v. Jeanne D. Dority v. Brief of Appellant

Utah Supreme Court

STATEMENT OF THE NATURE OF THE CASE

This is an action for divorce brought by the plaintiff-appellant, John P. Dority, against his wife, Jeanne D. Dority, the defendant-respondent, who appeared and counter-claimed for divorce.

DISPOSITION OF THE CASE IN THE LOWER COURT

The trial of this matter was held on August 1, 1980, before the Honorable James S. Sawaya (Record, hereinafter "R." at 117). On August 4, 1980, the court issued its slip opinion in the matter granting a decree of divorce to each party and making the following division of property:

To the respondent--

1. The real property on Schoolhouse Lane in Devon, Pennsylvania.
2. 850 shares of Sperry Corporation stock and 100 shares of I.B.M. stock.
3. A fund of about \$2,000.00 in a Pennsylvania checking account designated "Devon House Fund."
4. Her retirement fund with TIAA-CREF.
5. All personal property including automobiles, furniture, furnishings, etc. then in the name or possession of respondent.
6. Alimony in the sum of \$500 per month for a period of 36 months commencing September, 1980.

To the appellant--

1. The real property in respondent's name in Salt Lake County.
2. The remaining 844 shares of stock in the Sperry Corporation and the remaining 120 shares of stock in I.B.M.
3. Stock in United Abestos Limited.
4. His vested retirement fund held by the Sperry Corporation.
5. All personal property then in the possession or name of the appellant.

Each party was to bear his or her own costs and attorneys' fees (R. 115-16). Formal Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law

and the final Decree of Divorce, as prepared by counsel for respondent, were filed August, 11, 1980 (R. 127-34). On August 18, 1980, appellant filed his Notice of Objections to Findings of Fact, Conclusions of Law, and to the Decree of Divorce along with his Motion for a New Trial, or, in the Alternative, for Amendment of the Findings of Fact, Conclusions of Law, and Decree of Divorce (R. 135-39). A hearing on these objections and on the Motion for a New Trial was held on September 17, 1980 (R. 140, 295-312). Among other objections, it was noted that Finding 6(b) gave an unduly depressed figure for the equity in the home at Devon, Pennsylvania, in part because the equity had been reduced by the sum of \$17,000 for a personal loan made to respondent from her mother purportedly for the purpose of maintaining and improving the Devon real property which sum counsel for respondent admitted was not properly a lien against the property (R. 297-99, Defendant's Exhibit 8). Another objection made was the lack of sufficient evidence to support the award of alimony in paragraph 9 of the Findings (R. 301-04). These and all other objections to the Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law, with the exception of the correction of two typographical errors, were denied (R. 142).

On the Motion for New Trial, it was urged that the court had failed to adequately consider the requirements of Pennsylvania law with respect to the Pennsylvania real property, the house and lot located at Devon, Pennsylvania (R. 308-09). It was also urged that the evidence did not

support the award of alimony (R. 301-03), and that the court erred in not giving more consideration to Pennsylvania Law, which up until one month before trial, did not allow for any award of alimony after a decree of divorce in the circumstances presented here and which provided that suits begun before the effective date of the new law should generally continue under the old law, except "upon application granted" (R. 306-08). The court rejected these contentions, and specifically stated; "I don't think the Pennsylvania law should apply in this situation (R. 312-142).

Additional proposed findings were also submitted by counsel for appellant, but these were never adopted by the court (R. 311-12, 144-45).

The Notice of Appeal was filed October 16, 1980 (R. 147).

RELIEF SOUGHT ON APPEAL

Appellant requests that this Court reverse and vacate that part of the Findings and the Decree of the trial court which awarded the entire equity of the Pennsylvania real property to the respondent and which provided for an award of alimony. Appellant also requests that this Court remand this case to the trial court with an order directing the trial court to declare that the parties are tenants in common of equal one-half shares in value of the Pennsylvania real property, or,

in the alternative, to declare that appellant is entitled to additional property equivalent in value to \$23,000, the sum appellant contributed, from his separate property which he brought to the marriage, to the purchase of the real property in Devon, Pennsylvania. Appellant further requests that this Court declare on remand that respondent is not entitled to any alimony.

STATEMENT OF THE FACTS

The parties were married in Binghamton, New York, on April 15, 1956 (R. 202). The appellant was then 31 years old (R. 202). The respondent was three years younger, as the appellant was 55 and the respondent was 52 years old at the time of trial (R. 202, 257).

At the time of the marriage of the parties, the appellant was a patent attorney employed by the International Business Machines Corporation in Endicott, New York, at an annual salary of \$12,667.20 (R. 202-03). He had received a law degree in 1950 from the University of Wisconsin, had been admitted to practice law in the states of Wisconsin and Iowa, and had been registered to practice in the United States Patent Office as a patent attorney since early 1952 (R. 202-03). At the time of the marriage, the appellant owned a house and a lot located in Endicott, New York, that had a value of about \$16,000 and was free and clear of any obligation and, by his

own unrefuted testimony, appellant had approximately \$26,000.00 in other assets, held principally in the form of government bonds (R. 204-05, 242-43). Although respondent testified she did not know of appellant's \$26,000 in assets at the time of the marriage (259-60), she never denied that he had such assets and she admitted that he owned the house in Endicott (R. 283).

The respondent, at the time of the marriage, was four credits short of receiving her Bachelor's Degree at the University of Minnesota, had been working as a reporter at a daily newspaper at a monthly take-home salary of about \$500, which employment she quit about two weeks after the marriage, and she brought according to her own testimony at most \$500 in savings into the marriage plus a wedding present of \$500 from her parents (R. 258-60). Four children were born as issue of the marriage in the years 1956 through 1960, and the two youngest children, twins, were nineteen years old at the time of the divorce trial (R. 205-259). As these children have all reached their majority, there is no issue as to their custody or support.

In 1960, the appellant changed employers and began working for the Sperry Rand Corporation, and as a result of that change, the parties moved from the appellant's house in Endicott, New York, to Rye, New York (R. 206-07). Appellant purchased a lot in Rye and constructed a home on that lot using funds received from the sale of the house in Endicott, the assets he brought into the marriage in 1956, and by taking a

mortgage out for approximately \$30,000 (R. 206). The real property in Rye was owned only in the name of the appellant (R. 207).

In 1966, when appellant's employer moved from New York City to a suburb of Philadelphia, the appellant moved himself and his family to another Philadelphia suburb by the name of Devon. He there acquired a house on Schoolhouse Lane for a down payment of \$10,000 and by taking out a mortgage of \$25,000 (R. 207-08). The down payment came from the proceeds of the sale of the house in Rye, New York (R. 208). The sale of the Rye property netted about \$40,000 after payment of the \$30,000 mortgage and commissions, which \$40,000 was about the same amount invested by appellant from his separate property in the Rye property, of which another \$10,000 was used to make improvements in the Devon property in the years 1967 through 1972 (R. 202-09). The Devon property was placed in the name of both parties as tenants by the entireties (R. 227-28).

The parties have been separated since August 7, 1972, on which date the appellant returned home from work to find that his wife and children had left and taken most of the household furniture and furnishings with them. Shortly thereafter, a court order was entered requiring the appellant to pay the sum of \$1,100 per month for the support of his wife and four children, of which \$400 was allocated to the support of the wife (R. 209-210, Plaintiff's Exhibit 2). At that time the appellant had a gross salary of \$3,000 per month or \$36,000

per year (R. 210-211, Plaintiff's Exhibit 3). The appellant continued to reside in and to make the mortgage payments on the house on Schoolhouse Lane in Devon until the latter part of 1978 (R. 211). He also used another \$3,000 from the proceeds of the sale of the Rye property to make repairs on the Devon property after the separation of the parties (R. 225).

After a separation of almost five years, the appellant filed for divorce in Pennsylvania in 1977 (R. 212). At that time, appellant sought and obtained a court order reducing his support obligations to his wife from \$400 to \$250 per month and eliminating the requirement of support for the two older boys who had reached the age of majority (R. 217, Plaintiff's Exhibit 6). The respondent had begun full time employment in 1976 (R. 266). Moreover, the oldest child of the parties, Jim, resided with appellant at the home on Schoolhouse Lane from 1975 until the appellant left in late 1978. Also, the second son, Ben, resided with them from January 1978 until the appellant had to move to Salt Lake (R. 282). Also, the appellant has contributed to the support of these children while attending college even after they gained their majority (R. 282-83).

In August of 1978, the appellant learned that to continue employment with his employer, the Sperry Corporation, he would have to relocate to Salt Lake City (R. 215). At that time, the parties attempted to negotiate a settlement of the Pennsylvania divorce proceeding which the respondent was contesting and to

negotiate a property settlement but no agreement was reached (R. 267-69).

At the time of the appellant's involuntary transfer in late 1978, he was earning a gross salary of just slightly over \$46,000 (R. 217). Upon moving to Salt Lake, the appellant acquired a home at 3621 Oakview Drive for a purchase price of \$80,000 (R. 222). This was financed by borrowing a down payment of \$27,000 for which appellant's stocks were pledged as collateral to Merrill Lynch, and by granting a mortgage to the bank for the balance (R. 222, 230). This property was not acquired with any of the proceeds from the real property located in Devon as the appellant has received no proceeds from the Devon property (R. 222).

In June, 1979, after appellant had established residency in Utah, and because of the frustration he had experienced with respect to the Pennsylvania divorce action, which by then had dragged on for some two years, and fearing that now that he was in Utah he would not be able to help move it along, appellant filed for divorce in Utah (R. 218). Respondent submitted to the jurisdiction of the Utah court and there is no issue as to the jurisdiction of this state over the persons of both parties.

After appellant left the house in Devon in late 1978, respondent did some general cleanup and repair work on the place and began renting it out on July 1, 1979, at a rate of \$600 per month (R. 270-72). As of July 1, 1980, this rent was

increased to \$650 per month (R. 271-72). Three hundred dollars of that amount is net income after payments of taxes, mortgage payments, and maintenance (R. 272). Respondent claimed at trial to have borrowed about \$17,000 from her mother to bring all mortgage and tax payments on the Devon property current and to make repairs, but that only about half of this personal loan had been put into the restoration of the house or the making of payments on it (R. 270-71). On defendant's Exhibit 8, admitted over the objection of counsel for appellant that the listing and valuation of assets was not properly supported by foundation testimony or other evidence (R. 278), the listing of the assets of the parties improperly shows the \$17,000 loan as a reduction of the equity in the Devon real property (R. 297-98), which equity is further understated by the fact that the appraisal of the Devon property dates from November 1979, almost ten months before the trial (Deposition of Laurence S. Scott at pages 13-14, published at R. 256).

Defendant's Exhibit 9, admitted for illustrative purposes only (R. 274), reflects the income of the parties at the time of trial. It shows that even without support from appellant, respondent had a net monthly expendable income, after taxes, of \$1,332.02.

ARGUMENT

I.

THE TRIAL COURT COMMITTED ERROR IN AWARDING THE ENTIRE OWNERSHIP INTEREST IN THE DEVON REAL PROPERTY TO RESPONDENT.

A. The Court Erred by Not Applying Pennsylvania Real Property Law.

It is an often quoted principle that:

it is both the duty and the prerogative of this court in an equitable action to review the law and the facts and make its own findings and substitute its judgment for that of the trial court.

Mitchell v. Mitchell, 527 P.2d 1359, 1360 (Utah 1974).

However, appellant is quite cognizant of the discretion of a trial court in a divorce action to adjust financial and property interests, of the presumption of the validity that usually attaches to the judgment of a trial court in such a situation, and of appellant's burden to show on appeal that:

the evidence clearly preponderates against the findings as made; or there was a misunderstanding or misapplication of the law resulting in substantial and prejudicial error; or a serious inequity has resulted as to manifest a clear abuse of discretion.

Id. See also English v. English, 565 P.2d 409 (Utah 1977). However, as this court has also noted, the discretion of the trial court:

is not without limit nor immune from correction on review, if that is warranted. Due to the seriousness of such proceedings and the vital effect they have on people's lives, it is also the responsibility of this court to carefully survey

what is done, and while the determinations of the trial court are given deference and not disturbed lightly, changes should be made if that seems essential to the accomplishment and the desired objectives of the decree

DeRose v. DeRose 19 Utah 2d 77, 426 P.2d 221, 222 (1967). See also Read v. Read, 594 P.2d 871 (Utah 1979).

In the present action, although it is undisputed that the trial court had jurisdiction over the persons of both parties, an important part of the property to be divided was the real property located on Schoolhouse Lane in Devon, Pennsylvania. It is a well accepted proposition of law that a court hearing a marriage dissolution proceeding should look to the law of the situs of real property to determine how the property or its proceeds should be allocated. Haws v. Haws, 615 P.2d 978, 981 (Nev. 1980), Burton v. Burton, 23 Ariz. App. 159, 531 P.2d 204, 207 (1975), Barber v. Barber, 51 Cal.2d 244, 331 P.2d 628, 631 (1958). This principle is particularly applicable to the Devon real property inasmuch as it was used as the marital residence from the time of its acquisition in 1966 to the time the parties separated in 1972. It should also be noted that the appellant continued to live there until late 1978 and since that time respondent has taken charge of the property and has rented it out since July of 1979.

Both at trial and on the Motion for New Trial, counsel for appellant asked the trial court to take judicial notice of and to apply Section 501 of Title 68 of the Pennsylvania Consolidated Statutes (R. 287-88, 308-309) which reads:

Whenever any husband and wife, hereafter [the statute dates to 1927] acquiring property as tenants by entireties, shall be divorced, they shall thereafter hold such property as tenants in common of equal one-half shares in value and either of them may bring suit against the other to have the property sold and the proceeds divided between them. [The version quoted is an amended version effective June 27, 1980.]

The trial court's decree dividing the property of the parties clearly did not apply this statute, for it awarded all interest in the Devon property to the respondent. Moreover, at the hearing on the Motion for a New Trial, the court stated: "I don't think the Pennsylvania law should apply in this situation, because every case law or statute holds otherwise" (R. 312). It is not clear what law "holding otherwise" was had in mind by the court because the cases cited above squarely hold to the contrary. Appellant has not been able to locate any Utah law that is on point that would support the contention of the trial court.

It should also be noted that 68 Pa. Cons. Stat. Ann. §501 (Purdon) has been held by the Supreme Court of Pennsylvania to be strictly applicable according to its terms. Lykiardopoulos v. Lykiardopoulos, 453 Pa. 290, 309 A.2d 548 (1973). In Lykiardopoulos, the ex-husband, after a divorce, sought a partition of property held in a tenancy by the entireties during the existence of the marriage. Among other things, his former wife argued that before dividing the proceeds received from the sale of the property, she was entitled to expenses she had incurred to preserve and protect

the property since the date of the parties separation. Applying 68 Pa. Cons. Stat. §503 which provided for only recorded liens to be deducted before division of proceeds, the Pennsylvania Supreme Court held that the expenses incurred by the former wife could not be deducted before division of the proceeds unless they had been reduced to a recorded lien against the property.

In the action at bar, the trial court should have similarly applied 68 Pa. Cons. Stat. Ann. §501 (Purdon) so as to declare the parties tenants in common with equal one-half shares in value to the Devon real property without any deduction for the personal loan respondent received from her mother. This the trial court failed to do. For having thus failed to properly apply the Pennsylvania law which governs the disposition of the Devon parcel of real property, the trial court's findings and decree should be reversed and this court should remand the case to the trial court with an order directing that the trial court apply the law of Pennsylvania as explained.

B. In the Alternative, if this Court Does Not Deem the Pennsylvania Law to be Applicable to the Devon Real Property, The Trial Court Should be Directed to Award to Appellant The Equivalent Value of the Separate Property Appellant Brought Into the Marriage Which was Traced to the Acquisition of the Devon Real Property.

Even if this Court does not apply the Pennsylvania Statute referenced above, Utah case law demands that appellant be awarded the equivalent value of his separate property brought to the marriage which was used in the acquisition of the Devon real property. Jespersion v. Jespersen, 610 P.2d 326 (Utah 1980), Humphreys v. Humphreys, 520 P.2d 193 (Utah 1974). In Jespersion, this Court noted as recently as last year that the "parties' respective contributions to the marriage" is an important factor to consider in making a property division in a divorce action. In that case the wife brought to the marriage assets valued at over \$20,000 while the husband brought nothing to the marriage. A mobile home acquired during the marriage was found to have been financed with some \$19,000 that were the separate funds of the wife. Upon dissolution of the marriage, this court affirmed the propriety of the trial court's action in awarding to the wife an amount equal to the quantity of her separate funds used to acquire the mobile home before dividing the remaining proceeds from the sale of the mobile home in the following language: "It was not unreasonable for the court to permit plaintiff to withdraw from the marriage property the equivalent of those assets plaintiff brought into the marriage." 610 P.2d at 328.

In Humphreys, the principal asset acquired during the marriage was a home used as the marital residence. The defendant husband admitted that the home was purchased with at least \$3,000 that had been the separate property of the

plaintiff-wife. The trial court held that any proceeds from the sale of the home remaining after all mortgages, liens, judgments, and debts had been paid, were to be divided equally between the parties. This Court modified that decree so as to require reimbursement to the plaintiff of the \$3,400 she had contributed from her separate funds to the purchase of the home before dividing the proceeds that remained after the satisfaction of the mortgages and tax liens and before paying other debts of the parties.

In the case at bar, the marital residence in Devon, Pennsylvania was also the principal asset acquired by the parties during the period before they separated. Although appellant later acquired a residence in Salt Lake after his involuntary transfer here with assets acquired since the separation of the parties in 1972, it is only fair that if that portion of the trial court's decree awarding the Devon property to the respondent is to stand, that appellant first be awarded an amount equivalent to the separate property he contributed to the purchase of the Devon home. This amount should be \$23,000, \$10,000 of which went for the down payment in 1966, another \$10,000 of which went for improvements in the period 1966-1972, and another \$3,000 used for repairs in 1972 after the separation of the parties (R. 208, 225).

II

THE TRIAL COURT'S AWARD OF ALIMONY WAS NOT SUPPORTED
BY THE EVIDENCE OR WAS AN ABUSE OF DISCRETION
AND SHOULD BE VACATED.

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