1981

# John P. Dority v. Jeanne D. Dority v. Brief of Respondent

Utah Supreme Court

NATURE OF CASE

This is a divorce action in which the plaintiff husband appeals from the property distribution and alimony award entered by the trial judge.

DISPOSITION IN LOWER COURT

Following a day-long trial before the Honorable James S. Sawaya, a divorce was granted to the parties. The husband was awarded in excess of one-half of the parties' accumulated property, but was ordered to pay a modest fixed-term alimony award to the wife.

RELIEF SOUGHT ON APPEAL

Defendant-respondent Jeanne D. Dority respectfully requests that this Court affirm in its entirety the Decree fashioned by the trial court and, additionally, order an award to her of such sum as will

reasonably compensate her for the attorney's fees incurred in the defense of this appeal.

### STATEMENT OF FACTS

Defendant-respondent (hereinafter "Mrs. Dority") deems it necessary to present a concise statement of the facts of this case since the statement presented by plaintiff-appellant (hereinafter "Mr. Dority") fails to reflect accurately all of the relevant facts and circumstances at issue.

At the time the parties were married--almost a quarter century ago in 1956--each had obtained essentially all of their formal education. (Tr. at 5 and 61; R. at 202 and 258.) Mr. Dority was a young patent attorney with I.B.M. earning approximately \$12,000 per year. (Tr. at 6; R. at 203.) During their marriage, the parties raised four children, all of whom had attained their majority prior to the trial. (Tr. at 8; R. at 205.)

The parties moved four times, keeping pace with Mr. Dority's employment, eventually locating in September of 1966, in Devon, Pennsylvania, where they purchased a home on Schoolhouse Lane. (Tr. at 9-10; R. at 206-07.) This residence was occupied by the parties and their children until August of 1972, when Mrs. Dority and the four children moved from the home. (Tr. at 12; R. at 209.) The parties have been separated since that time.



A separate maintenance action was commenced in Pennsylvania in 1972 (Tr. at 12-13; R. at 239-40) and, in June of 1977, Mr. Dority instituted divorce proceedings in Pennsylvania (Tr. at 15; R. at 212).

In the fall of 1978, Mr. Dority was transferred to Utah and, in 1979, he voluntarily elected to institute a Utah divorce action, even though the Pennsylvania proceedings were still pending at that time. (R. 2-4 and Tr. at 44; R. at 241.) Thereafter, Mr. Dority filed a petition in the Pennsylvania divorce proceeding seeking to discontinue that action based upon his residence here in Utah.

At the time of the trial, Mr. Dority was 55 years of age and employed as a senior patent attorney with the Sperry Corporation. (Tr. at 20; R. at 247.) He was earning in excess of \$51,000 per year. (Id.) On the other hand, Mrs. Dority was 52 years of age and suffering from impaired eyesight as a result of a cataract condition that had earlier necessitated surgery. (Tr. at 80; R. at 277.) She was employed at Drexel University in Pennsylvania, receiving a gross annual income of \$16,824. (Exhibit D-9, received R. at 274, reproduced infra at A-3.)

At the time of trial, the parties' former residence on Schoolhouse Lane in Devon, Pennsylvania, had an appraised value of \$95,000 (Deposition of Laurence Scott) and was subject to a mortgage in the amount of \$16,000 (Tr. at 32; R. at 229), with an additional \$17,000 owed to Mrs. Dority's family for the repayment of funds advanced for its maintenance and improvement (Tr. at 73-74; R. at 270-71). Accordingly,

the Pennsylvania property had a net value of \$62,000. In addition, Mr. Dority had purchased a \$100,000 house here in Salt Lake County, which was subject to a \$51,000 mortgage (Tr. at 33; R. at 230) and an obligation in the amount of \$30,500, incurred to obtain the downpayment. Accordingly, the Salt Lake property had a net value of \$18,500. The parties also owned in excess of \$112,000 in securities, which Mr. Dority had placed in his own name. (See, Exhibit D-8, received R. at 278, reproduced infra at A-1.) Mr. Dority further had a vested interest in a retirement fund with a value at trial in excess of \$85,000. (Tr. at 35; R. at 232.) While Mr. Dority claims that most of the stock owned at the time of trial had been acquired after the parties' separation in 1972, it was clear from his testimony that he had sold a substantial amount of stock acquired prior to the separation in order to reacquire stock following the separation. (Tr. at 37-39; R. at 234-36.)

In dividing the assets acquired during the tenure of the parties' 25-year marriage, the trial court awarded approximately \$160,000 in assets to Mr. Dority, while awarding only approximately \$120,000 of assets to Mrs. Dority. (See Schedule "A", infra at A-2.)

During the marriage, Mr. Dority progressed from a young attorney to a highly successful corporate patent attorney, with a consequent more than quadrupling of his annual income. Mrs. Dority, on the other hand, gave up her job as a newspaper reporter and remained at

home, rearing the parties' family and tending to their household needs.  
(Tr. at 62; R. at 259.)

Notwithstanding that he received some \$40,000 more than his wife and well over half of the combined assets, Mr. Dority appeals from the trial court's property distribution, challenging that it is unfair to him. Notwithstanding that the trial court ordered him to pay only \$500 per month in alimony, and only for a three-year period, Mr. Dority appeals from the trial court's alimony award, claiming that it is unreasonable.

## ARGUMENT

POINT I. THE CAREFULLY CONSIDERED DECREE FASHIONED BY THE TRIAL COURT IS PRESUMED PROPER AND SHOULD NOT BE MODIFIED ABSENT A CLEAR SHOWING BY THE APPELLANT THAT THE TRIAL COURT HAS ABUSED ITS DISCRETION OR WAS MISTAKEN AS TO THE APPLICABLE LAW.

This Court has on innumerable occasions held that, while a divorce action is equitable in nature, the ruling of the trial judge is favored with a presumption of propriety and accuracy. It is only in those few instances in which the appellant can clearly demonstrate a manifest abuse of discretion or misapplication of law that the decree fashioned by the trial judge will be disturbed. Such a proposition is logically grounded upon the advantaged position of the trial court, who

has observed the witnesses, heard the testimony, and become acquainted at least to a limited degree with the parties, their problems, and their properties.

In a tacit recognition of the fact that the Findings of Fact entered by Judge Sawaya are supported by sufficient credible evidence, Mr. Dority relies upon the equitable nature of divorce proceedings in his invitation to this Court to revamp the original decree. A similar invitation was refused in Eastman v. Eastman, 558 P.2d 514 (Utah 1976), with the observation that:

We have many times stated that even though proceedings in divorce cases are equitable, in which this Court may review the evidence, due to the prerogatives and advantaged position of the trial court, we give considerable deference to his findings and judgment; and we do not disturb them unless the evidence clearly preponderates to the contrary, or he has abused his discretion, or has misapplied principles of law.

558 P.2d at 515-16 (footnote citations omitted). It is, therefore, incumbent upon the appellant in a divorce case to demonstrate some clear abuse of discretion or misapplication of law before this Court will act to revise any aspect of the original decree.

This Court has long held that its inherent power to supplant the trial judge's discretion is to be exercised only judiciously and infrequently. For example, in Wilson v. Wilson, 5 Utah 2d 79, 296 P.2d 977 (1956), it was held that:

The more recent pronouncements of this court, and the policy to which we adhere, are to the effect that the trial judge has considerable latitude of discretion in such matters and that his judgment should not be changed lightly, and in fact, not at all, unless it works such a manifest injustice or inequity as to indicate a clear abuse of discretion.

296 P.2d at 981 (footnote omitted).

Since the plan of distribution and decree fashioned by the trial judge will be modified only if the result of a clearly demonstrated abuse of discretion or of a manifest misapplication of relevant law, the burden is upon the party dissatisfied with the trial court's decision to demonstrate such error. This traditional proposition was recognized in English v. English, 565 P.2d 409 (Utah 1977), in which the principles applicable to this appeal were concisely summarized by this Court:

The trial court, in a divorce action, has considerable latitude of discretion in adjusting financial and property interests. A party appealing therefrom has the burden to prove there was a misunderstanding or misapplication of the law resulting in substantial and prejudicial error; or the evidence clearly preponderated against the findings; or such a serious inequity has resulted as to manifest a clear abuse of discretion.

565 P.2d at 410 (footnote citation omitted). Essentially identical statements of this principle can be found in many other Utah cases, including Baker v. Baker, 551 P.2d 1263 (Utah 1976); Hansen v. Hansen,

537 P.2d 491 (Utah 1975); and Mitchell v. Mitchell, 527 P.2d 1359 (Utah 1974).

Under the standards of review traditionally applied by this Court, the property distribution and alimony award entered in this case are presumed valid and will be affirmed unless Mr. Dority has demonstrated that Judge Sawaya has so clearly abused his discretion as to result in substantial prejudice or has misapplied the relevant law of this state to such a degree that the decree entered is manifestly unfair and inequitable. Naylor v. Naylor, 563 P.2d 184 (Utah 1977); Spangler v. Spangler, 561 P.2d 1076 (Utah 1977); Pearson v. Pearson, 561 P.2d 1080 (Utah 1977); Iverson v. Iverson, 526 P.2d 1126 (Utah 1974); Carter v. Carter, 19 Utah 2d 183, 429 P.2d 35 (1967); Michelsen v. Michelsen, 14 Utah 2d 328, 383 P.2d 932 (1963).

**POINT II. APPELLANT HAS ENTIRELY FAILED TO MEET HIS BURDEN OF DEMONSTRATING SOME ABUSE OF DISCRETION OR MISAPPLICATION OF LAW; THEREFORE, THE ORIGINAL DECREE SHOULD BE AFFIRMED IN ITS ENTIRETY.**

**A. The trial court appropriately refused to be bound by Pennsylvania law.**

Although appellant in his brief (App. Br. at 11-12) recognizes the great discretion accorded the trial court in domestic matters, he then myopically ignores this principle, arguing that the trial court

erroneously refused to be bound by certain arbitrary provisions of Pennsylvania law. Mr. Dority voluntarily filed this divorce action here in Utah and, thereafter, voluntarily sought the dismissal of the Pennsylvania action, which he had earlier filed. Notwithstanding his clearly manifest election to obtain his divorce in Utah, Mr. Dority now seeks to require the trial court to apply selectively portions of the domestic relations law of Pennsylvania, which Mr. Dority apparently believes to favor his position. The unreasonableness is apparent of Mr. Dority's demand that his wife (who was still a Pennsylvania resident at the time of the trial of this action) come to Utah to defend the divorce proceeding but then be faced with the application of certain isolated provisions of Pennsylvania law.

Mr. Dority is a Utah resident. He voluntarily filed this divorce action here in Utah. The overwhelming bulk of the parties' assets were located in Utah. Mr. Dority abandoned the divorce action that he had once commenced in Pennsylvania. Yet, he now argues that the trial court should have applied Pennsylvania law.

The trial court, of course, had the statutory jurisdiction to divide fully the property of the parties. Section 30-3-5, Utah Code Annotated (1953 as amended), broadly states:

When a decree of divorce is made,  
the court may make such orders in  
relation to the . . . property and  
parties . . . as may be equitable. . . .

§30-3-5(1), Utah Code Annotated (1953 as amended). Accordingly, once

the jurisdictional prerequisites were met, the trial court had broad power to divide the property of the parties in an equitable manner.

The bulk of the parties' property was located here in Utah; accordingly, it was appropriate that this property, at least, be divided pursuant to Utah law. In In re marriage of Ramsey, 526 P.2d 319 (Ct. App. Colo. 1974), the trial court's refusal to distribute property pursuant to Colorado law was reversed:

An action for dissolution of marriage is a proceeding in rem . . . . Moreover, where, as here, a petitioner . . . has possession of property located in Colorado . . . the court acquires control of the property by virtue of its jurisdiction over petitioner, and the court thereby obtains jurisdiction to determine the appropriate disposition of that property.

526 P.2d 320 (citations omitted). Likewise in this case, the trial court properly distributed the property of these parties in accordance with Utah law.

Moreover, in Smestad v. Smestad, 94 Idaho 181, 484 P.2d 730 (1971), the Idaho Supreme Court articulated a similar proposition, but extended its scope to include property of the parties located in a foreign jurisdiction. The wife contended on appeal that the trial court had erred in distributing property located outside the state of Idaho. The court held, however, that so long as personal jurisdiction had been obtained, it was appropriate for the trial court to apply its law in



order to distribute property located outside of the state of Idaho. (484 P.2d at 733). Mr. Dority does not dispute that the trial court had obtained personal jurisdiction over both parties.

In Noble v. Noble, 26 Ariz. App. 89, 546 P.2d 358 (1976), this concept was applied even to property located in a foreign nation. It was argued on appeal that the trial court had erred both in attempting to effect a distribution of the foreign property and in basing the distribution upon the provisions of its local state law. These contentions were rejected on appeal:

We agree that the courts of this state do not have jurisdiction to determine title to property in another state or foreign country. However, we do not view the trial court's determination of the interest of the parties in the Denmark property as determining the title to that property. Rather, we view the trial court's determination to simply be, as between the parties before the court, what interest they held in the foreign jurisdiction property. This the trial court may properly do. . . .

546 P.2d at 361. In the present case, it was appropriate both for the trial court to divide and distribute the relatively small portion of the parties' property that was not located within the state of Utah and for the trial court to have divided that property under the applicable provisions of Utah law.

Appellant does not contend that the overall distribution of the parties' property effected by the trial court was inherently unjust

or inequitable; rather, Mr. Dority simply complains that the trial court did not find itself to be bound by certain provisions of Pennsylvania law. The trial court's award of the residence in Pennsylvania to Mrs. Dority makes a great deal of common sense--Mr. Dority effectively abandoned that house two years ago when he moved to Utah and knowingly allowed it to go to the point of foreclosure, thus requiring Mrs. Dority to take the property back and care for it. (Tr. at 48 and 72-73; R. at 245 and 269-70.) Additionally, Mr. Dority has chosen to reside here in Utah, while Mrs. Dority remains in Pennsylvania. Under such circumstances, it was logical for the trial court to award the Utah property to Mr. Dority, and the Pennsylvania property to Mrs. Dority.

Since in the overall distribution of the property, Mr. Dority was awarded well over half of the parties' assets, he has no legitimate complaint with the distribution fashioned by the trial court.

**B. The total property distribution effected by the trial court is entirely appropriate.**

The assets of the parties, as reflected by their testimony, are summarized in defendant's Exhibit 8, which was received into evidence by the trial court. (Tr. at 81; R. at 278.) This exhibit is reproduced in the Appendix to this brief. (Infra at A-1.) At trial, Mr. Dority testified that the Sperry Corporation stock was worth \$93,805

(Tr. at 34; R. at 231) and the trial court interlineated that amount; therefore, the assets actually total \$286,316.

As noted earlier, the trial court awarded \$162,119.50 of these assets to Mr. Dority, well in excess of one-half. The distribution of the assets effected by the trial court's Decree is summarized as Schedule "A" in the Appendix. (Infra at A-2.)

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